














B. Foreign Counterpart Patents

17. The foreign counterparts to the *731 patent are EP0898719 and DE 69826079
(Germany).

C. Licenses Under The *731 Patent

18.  No licenses under the 731 patent exist.

D. Non-Technical Description Of The *731 Patent

19.  The *731 patent is directed to an apparatus and method for locating an electrically
conductive object using the electromagnetic field generated by a current in the object. The
apparatus has a plurality of spaced apart antennas. To locate the object, two or more of the
antennas together have at least four electromagnetic field detectors, with the first and second
detectors measuring field components in a direction perpendicular to the direction of separation
of the antennas, the third detector measuring field components parallel to the direction of
antennae separation, and the fourth detector measuring field components in a direction mutually
perpendicular to the field components measured by the first, second and third detectors.

V. UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS OF THE RESPONDENTS
A. PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Vivax-Metrotech Corp.

20.  On information and belief, Vivax-Metrotech unlawfully sells for importation,
imports, or sells after importation into the United States an underground object locator
designated the vLocPro that infringes and/or induces infringement of claims 1, 2, 6, and 7 of the
*731 patent. A sample of this infringing product is submitted with this Complaint as Physical
Exhibit 1. Note that the Vivax name appears on the accused infringing device. See Exhibit 10.
The vLocPro User Handbook 1s attached as Exhibit 9. A claim chart that applies independent

claim 1 of the 731 patent to the vL.ocPro is attached hereto as Exhibit 3. On information and



belief, Vivax-Metrotech became aware of the *731 patent no later than 2005, when certain
Radiodetection employees left the company to start Vivax Corporation. Further discovery may
reveal that additional claims of the *731 patent are infringed by the vLocPro, and that other
Vivax-Metrotech products infringe claims of the *731 patent.

SebaKMT

21. On information and belief, SebaKMT is the parent of Vivax-Metrotech based in
Germany. See Exhibit 11. As indicated above, a sample of the vL.ocPro infringing product is
submitted with this Complaint as Physical Exhibit 1 and a claim chart that applies independent
claim 1 of the *731 patent to the vLocPro is attached hereto as Exhibit 3. Note that the
SebaKMT name appears on the accused infringing device. See Exhibit 10. Accordingly,
SebaKMT participates in and is ultimately responsible for Vivax-Metrotech’s sales and thus
unlawfully sells for importation, imports, or sells after importation into the United States an
underground object locator designated the vLocPro that infringes and/or induces infringement of
claims 1, 2, 6, and 7 of the *731 patent. On information and belief, SebaKMT became aware of
the *731 patent no later than approximately 2008, when it acquired Vivax Corporation after
certain Radiodetection employees left to start Vivax Corporation in 2005. See Exhibit 12.
Further discovery may reveal that additional claims of the 731 patent are infringed by the
vLocPro, and that other SebaKMT products infringe claims of the 731 patent.

Leidi Utility Supply Ltd.

22. On information and belief, Leidi coordinates the manufacture of an underground
object locator designated the LD 6000 in China and unlawfully sells for importation, imports, or
sells after importation into the United States an underground object locator designated the

vLocPro that infringes and/or induces infringement of claims 1, 2, 6, and 7 of the *731 patent.



See Confidential Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 13. As illustrated on its website, www.leidi.com, Leidi’s
LD 6000 bears the Vivax name and appears to be identical to the vLocPro. See Exhibit 13.

23.  Asindicated above, a sample of the vLocPro infringing product is submitted with
this Complaint as Physical Exhibit 1 and a claim chart that applies independent claim 1 of the
731 patent to the vLocPro is attached hereto as Exhibit 3. On information and belief, Leidi
became aware of the 731 patent no later than 2005, when certain Radiodetection employees left
the company to start Vivax Corporation, which contracted Leidi to coordinate the manufacture of
the accused infringing device. See Confidential Exhibit 1. Further discovery may reveal that
additional claims of the *731 patent are infringed by the viLocPro, and that other Leidi products
infringe claims of the *731 patent.

V1.  SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF IMPORTATION AND SALE

24, On information and belief, Vivax-Metrotech, its parent company SebaKMT,
and/or Leidi import into the United States, sell for importation mto the United States, and/or sell
after importation into the United States infringing locator products. The specific instance of
importation or sales of infringing locators set forth is a representative example of the unlawful
importation and/or sale after importation of the infringing product.

25. As described in Exhibit 4, the Declaration of Jacob Warm, a representative
sample of the vLocPro, which 1s attached as Physical Exhibit 1, was purchased in the United
States. On information and belief, Physical Exhibit 1 was manufactured by Leidi or an affiliate
in China, imported into the United States by Vivax-Metrotech, SebaKMT, and/or Leidi, and then
sold by Vivax-Metrotech after importation. The infringing product contains a label that indicates

that it 1s made in China. See Exhibit 10.



VII. THE DOMESTIC INDUSTRY

26.  In accordance with Section 337(a)(2)-(3), an industry in the United States exists
for products protected by the *731 patent. Radiodetection has made significant investments in
plant and equipment, significant employment of labor and capital, and substantial investments in
its exploitation of the 731 patent in the United States, including distribution, repair and
refurbishment, warranty support, customer support, and marketing. These imnvestments are all
tied, at least in part, to the *731 patent. Confidential Exhibit 1 is a declaration regarding
Radiodetection’s domestic industry, detailing Radiodetection’s significant investments in plant
and equipment, significant employment of labor and capital, and substantial investments in its
exploitation of the 731 patent in the United States.

B. Radiodetection Practices The Inventions Of The *731 Patent

27.  Radiodetection locator products that are sold and supported in the United States,
including the RD8000—which is representative of Radiodetection’s line of locator products with
respect to the patented technology at issue here—practice at least one or more claims of the *731
patent. Exhibit 5 is a claim chart demonstrating that the RD8000 practices at least one
independent claim of the 731 patent. The RD8000 user guide and operation manual, attached as
Exhibits 6 and 7 respectively, provide further evidence that this representative product practices

at least one claim of the *731 patent. Photographs of the RD8000 are submitted as Exhibit 8.

C. Radiodetection Maintains Distribution And Repair Facilities in Illinois and
Maine And Employs A Significant Number Of Personnel In The United
States

28. Radiodetection’s locators are one of the leading brands sold in the United States,

and the RD8000, an improvement over its industry standard predecessor locator, has been
offered for sale in the United States since 2008. Radiodetection operates two facilities in the

United States relating to distribution and repair and employs approximately 26 people in the



United States dedicated to sales, distribution, customer service, and product support.
Radiodetection maintains a facility in Bridgton, Maine that is dedicated to customer service and
service repair relating to locators sold in the United States, including the RD8000.
Radiodetection also maintains a facility in Romeoville, Illinois, outside of Chicago, used for
centralized distribution in the United States.

29. In particular, Radiodetection ships its locators from its Bristol, UK manufacturing
site to Romeoville and Bridgton on a monthly basis for sale in the United States. The U.S. sales
team in Bridgton currently comprises a team of six staff, headed by a UK-based Group Sales &
Marketing Director, a U.S.-based Sales Director, and four U.S.-based Area/Industry Sales
Managers. All customer service, repair, and warranty issues are handled from the Bridgton
facility in Maine. Similarly, all spare and replacement parts are stored and shipped from
Bridgton.

30. One employee in Romeoville is responsible for shipping the RD8000 and other
related locators within the United States after orders are placed, and he reports to a supervisor in
Bridgton. He 1s assisted by two part-time employees. The Romeoville facility for shipping the
RD8000 and other related locators constitutes about 2,500 square feet within a larger shipping
warehouse owned by Radiodetection’s parent company.

31. Service, repair, and warranty work takes place in Bridgton, where three service
technicians and six customer service employees are stationed. When a device needs service or
repair, it 1s shipped to Bridgton, where it 1s received by the returns administrator who processes
the device, identifies its specific product number, verifies warranty status, and enters this
mformation into tracking software. The device is then assigned to one of three technicians for

inspection and repair.
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32.  Each of the three technicians has his own workbench, complete with standard
electronic test and repair equipment such as a voltmeter, ohmmeter, galvanometer, power supply,
signal generator, oscilloscope, frequency counter and soldering iron for repairs. Each of the
technicians has substantial experience in the industry. The repair workspace constitutes about
2,000 square feet out of the approximately 45,000 square foot facility. Immediately outside the
facility is a large outdoor testing loop—about the size of a football field—that contains buried
underground cable of known type and depth that is used for testing the locators.

D. Radiodetection Expends Significant Resources On Marketing In the United
States

33. In support of its sales of the RD8000 and other locators, Radiodetection engages
in significant marketing efforts in the United States and throughout the world. In addition to
print media placed in pertinent publications, Radiodetection participates in numerous trade
shows in the United States. Leaving aside Radiodetection’s long history of participating in trade
shows in the United States, through May in 2010 alone, Radiodetection has participated in the
following conferences:

s SIEO-NACE Show in Sun Valley, Idaho;

e  WUCC Corrosion Conference in Casper, Wyoming;

¢ NACE Show in Colorado Springs, Colorado;

¢ Utility Construction Expo (Nat’l Utility Contractors Association) in Orlando, Florida;
¢ Delaware Rural Water Association in Milford, Delaware;

e Annual Technical Conference and Vendor Expo in Cromwell, Connecticut;

e Pumper and Cleaner Expo 2010 in Louisville, Kentucky;

e New Jersey Water Association Environment Association Seminar in Eatontown, New

York;
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o CGA Damage Prevention Show in San Diego, California;
¢ NACE National Corroston Show in San Antonio, Texas;
e PHCC Show in Long Beach, California; and
o AWWA PNW Section — Water Works Show in Tacoma, Washington
Radiodetection 1s scheduled to appear at numerous other conferences this year and has
made significant expenditures relating to these appearances in the form of labor and employment
costs, travel costs, sales costs, and customer communication expenditures.
VIII. RELATED LITIGATION
34. On the date of this Complaint, or immediately thereafter, Radiodetection will be
filing an action against all Respondents identified herein, alleging infringement of at least the
’731 patent in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia.
IX. RELIEF
35.  Radiodetection respectfully requests that the United States International Trade
Commission:
(b) mstitute an immediate mvestigation pursuant to Section 337(b)(1) of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, into the violations by proposed Respondents of
Section 337 arising from the importation into the United States, and/or sale within the United
States after importation, of proposed Respondents’ locator devices, including the vLocPro and
other products that infringe one or more claims of U.S. Patent No. 6,268,731.
(c) schedule and conduct a hearing, pursuant to Section 337(c), for purposes of
receiving evidence and hearing argument concerning whether there has been a violation of

Section 337 and, following the hearing, determine that there has been a violation of Section 337.
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(d) issue a permanent exclusion order, pursuant to Section 337(d), excluding from
entry into the United States locator devices, including the vL.ocPro and other products that
infringe one or more claims of the *731 patent.

(e) issue a permanent order, pursuant to Section 337(f), directing proposed
Respondents to cease and desist from importing, selling, offering for sale, using, demonstrating,
promoting, marketing, and/or advertising in the United States, or otherwise transferring outside
the United States for sale in the United States proposed Respondents’ vLocPro product and other
products that infringe one or more claims of the *731 patent.

€3) grant all such other and further relief as it deems appropriate under the law, based

upon the facts complained of herein as determined by the investigation.

Dated: June 10, 2010 Respectfully s

William C. Bergmann
A. Neal Seth

BAKER & HOSTETLER LLP
1050 Connecticut Ave., N.W.
Washington, DC 20036

(202) 861-1500

Counsel for Radiodetection, Ltd.
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VERIFICATION OF RADIODETECTION, LTD.

I, Kevin Lench, declare under penalty of perjury that the following statements are true:

1. I am the Sales and Marketing Director at Radiodetection, Ltd. and am duly authorized
to sign this complaint on behalf of Complainant.

2. Prior to assuming my present position at Radiodetection, I was Marketing and
Engineering Director at Radiodetection for 2 years. I earned an undergraduate degree
in electronic engineering and worked as a design engineer and subsequently general
manager of an engineering test and measurement company for several years before
joining Radiodetection. Accordingly, I have sufficient technical knowledge to
understand the contents of this Complaint.

3. I have read Complainant’s COMPLAINT UNDER SECTION 337 OF THE TARIFF
ACT OF 1930, AS AMENDED, and am aware of its contents.

4. To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, formed after an inquiry
reasonable under the circumstances, the allegations and other factual contentions in
the complaint have evidentiary support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to
have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or
discovery.

5. The claims and other legal contentions in the complaint are warranted by existing law
or by a non-frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing

law or the establishment of new law.
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